NEWS LETTER

Association of Indiana University Chemisis

March 22, 1951
Dear A.1.U.C. Members:

once more the sun is shining warmly on Southern tndiana. The grass is now
green again and the jonquils are in bloom. The cheerful notes of the cardinals
and titmice f]oating through the open window of the Chemistry Building combine
with the sight of students strolling leisurely along campus walks to remind us
that spring is returning to I.U. Does this awake fond memories? well, let’'s
do something about it. Why not take part of that annual vacation and make a
pilgrimage back to the scenes of former happy days. To be sure, most of the
faces will be unfamiliar, but there will be some familiar ones as well. Or.
May is here regularly, and Dr. Mathers and Dr. Brown rarely miss a day of part-
time attendance at their laboratories. -Dean Briscoe at his office in the Ad-
ministration Buiiding will be very glad to see you. We would be most happy to
have you stop by and visit us in the "editorial office” for a chat. we should
like to get acquainted with those who were not in school during the years of
1927~35. After all, you need not wait for your regular class reunion. You are
always a member of the group at the Chemistry Building.

some of us will be able to get together next month in Cleveland at the
lunchean during the American Chemical Society Meeting. our luncheon is to be
held at 12:15 e ‘

R Tuesday, April 10, 1951,
in

parior C ’

of the < -
Hollenden Hotel .
Cleveland, ohijo.

Tickets will be available at the A.C.S. Headquarters or at the door at the time
of the luncheon. We hope thai as many as possible of you who are in Cleveland
at the time will attend the luncheon.

Forty-three members and several guests attended the Yuncheon held at the
stevens Hotel last September during the meeting of the American Chemical Socie-
ty. Your President, Mrs. Meredith pPleasant Sparks, A.M. '28, presided. _

By next September it will be necessary for you to choose officers again
for our organization in accordancé with the new constitution which you approved
wunanimously, |f you have suggestions for candidates for the offices of presi~-
dent and Secretary-Treasurer who would serve for the coming year beginning in
September, please send them in. You can thereby assist pr. Gucker and your
editor in making up a siate to put on the ballots to be sent out with the sum-
mer news letter,

and speaking of sending things in, once more we are obliged to cail atten-
tion to the extreme modesty of most of our members. 1{t seems that we only get
news when we send out emergency calls, well, this is just another emergency,
and we hope to get some more from you for the summer news letter. This t ime
you are being sent a self-addressed postal card with a full side left blank for
news of your activities. Please let us know whether there are any of your fel-
low alumni who are not on our mailing list.

sincerely yours,

John S. peake



NEWS OF THE ALUMNI ~

Dr. Joseph D. Heitger, °'0%, has been practicing ophthalmology and otolaryngol-
ogy in Louisville since 1934

h Hamill, ‘15, has been employed by C)imax Molybdenum Company for the past
figteen years. For twelve of those fifteen years he has been in charge of the
centrol laboratory as well as research,

gol. Michael J. Blew, "16, reports that he Is pretty busy:as Chief of the
‘water supply and sanitary Services, 0ffice of Chief of Engineers of the De-
partment of the Army. ' .

peloss A. Grant, *17, Division credit Manager of the Socony-vacuum oil Com—
pany, chicago, Is looking forward to retiring te Bloomington in about nine
years-——apparently as a *gentleman farmer.* )

Richard R. Grindle, 17, has been superintendent of the. chemical plant for Re-
search products Cdrporation, madison, Wisconsin. They manufacture zeolites
and other water treating minerals.

J. C. Warner, A, B, "19, A, M. '20, Ph. D. '23, has joined the illustrious
group oY [ndiana yniversity who have become coflege and university presidents,
Dr. Warner was installed as president of the Carnegie |nstitute of Technology
on gctober 28, 1530. President warner went to Carnegie Tech in 1924: In 1938
he was made Chairman of the Department of Chemistry and later pDean of the
Graduate School of the Carnegie jnstitute of Technology. Mrs. Warner (Loulse
Hamer) is also an Indiana graduate.

varling ¥, votaw, A. M. '26, is with the rroctor and Gamble COmpaﬂ{ and is
thelv¥ Director of publicity. As guest speaker of the student affiliate of the
american Chemicai Society cn Febroary 26, 1551 he spoke on "Employment OQﬁor—
tupitles in Chemical yndustry,® telling the students here at indiana of e
many unusual experiences connected with his work in particular.

worth A. Fletcher, Ph.D. '27, is professor of Chemistry and Registrar at the
Municipal ygniversity of wichita, wichita, Kansas.

gex Bradt, *30, reports that he has been in pgger, plastics, and process.in—
dust¥y research and develonment ever since he left school. Two years prior to
world war |1 he *hung out his shingle' as a consulting chem(st: but during the
war he worked at an ordinance plani setting up technical depariments and such.
tater he went to work at the university of Chicago Metallurgy Laboratory.
Since the war he has returned to consulting.,

william M, Leath, A.M. °31, iS a Senjor Research Chemist.with Tide water Asso-
ciated 011 Company (western Division), Avon Refinery, which is located 30,
miles east of San Francisco.

J. E. Weber, *32, who is teaching at Bowling Green state pniversity, 8owling’
Green, §nio, brought out a new edition of his junior level organig: chemistry
laboratory manual several moniths ago.

Joanna M. Dickey. A. M. °33, who-has been with the armstrong Cork company,
Lancaster, pennsylvanla, for the past several years is at present working on
%he chemistry of the drying oils and reactions of resinous materials with dry-
ng oils. :

Dr. Frank £. Rice, A. M. '33, is Executive secretary of The Evaporated Hilk
‘Association, an organization devoted to research and educational work on be-
half of evaporated milk. : ,




Benjamin . kaufman, °33, is_an attorney specializing in patent law in the
Chemical field. His office is at 225 Broadway, New York City.

Luther s. Roehm, A. M. *34, has been with The Dow Chemical Company for about
iwelve years., The last we heard his title was that of Assistant Manager of the
Technical service and Development Division.

Ro;_ﬁg}tema Ph. D. ‘3%, is a member of the Chemistry pepartment of the Chicago
un ergraauafe Division of the uyniversity of [1linois.

Robert L, Brown, '35, has spent the past fifteen years with Globe-ynion ync.,
Kilwaukee. Al present he is Assistant to the chief Engineer in the storage
Battery Engineering Department, .

J- F. Deliinger, '35, was employed at the Linde Ailr products Cempany research
Jaboratory Tocated at Tonewanda, New York from 1936 to 1842. In 1542 he went
to East Chicago with the Lince Air Corundum Division manufacturing synthetic
sapphire products,

. Griffitis, pPh. D. °*36, is a professor chemistry at Maryvilie College,
Maryvilie, Tennessee,

Lester L. Stout, '36, is Assistant to the Executive Director of The 0hio State
university Résearch Foundation.

Robert H, Treadway, Ph, D. '36, has a new home address:; 8400 Hull prive, phila-
delpnia 18, pennsyivania. Bob is with the Eastern Regional Laboratory of the
Department of Agriculture.

Lyle M. wiliiams, *36, is a_project engineer with the Guide Lamp Division of
€ Genera rs Corporation, Anderson, (ndiana.

Zenon Szatrowski, A. M. '37,-is Chairman of the Department of Statistics at the
University of Buffalo, Buffalo, New York.

Eldridge Faith, *38, is an organic chemist with the pitman-Moore Company of
Indianapolis, Indiana

Robert B, Forney, °39, is an Assistant professor of Toxicology at the yndiana
University Medical School. He ¢onducts analyses for poisons for coroners and
other law enforcement agencies in the state,

Wendell D, Mason, M. A. *30, tells us that he is now a chemist.-with Huntington
Laboratories, Huntington, Indiana. After leaving {ndiana he was an instructor
at the university of Tennessee and later a chemist at TVA (Muscle Shoals) for
several years. :

otis ¥, Fortner, *40, has a new address: Air Reduction Company, inc., Research
Laboratories, Muirray Hill, New Jersey. He is still with the same company, how-
ever.

He S. Gutows%y, %0, Is on the teaching staff of the Chemistry Department at
the University of lilnnons in Urbana.

walter J. Kleinschmidt, *40, has accepted a position in the research labora-

loTies of EIT LiTiy and Company. #He received his Ph. D. at the university of
Minnesota this §$5t summer, .

Joseph E, waltz, °u1, Is Research Manager in the Nylon Research Secticn at the
Duront txperimental Station, Wilmington, Delaware.

Reuben J. Grim, ph. D. ‘41, has been teaching at the west Virginia lbstitute of
TechnoTogy Tor twenty-eight years. He received his A, B, and A, M. in the
spring and fall of 1920, however. :



J. Roberi Sgraul. Ph, D, *#1, has been the Assistant to the Director of Re-
5%arch ang resting Laboratory for the General American Transgortation Corpora-
tion, East Chicago, irdiara.” Nis work is principally with chemical enginecer—
ing process equipment and rotary dryers in particular.

Ricgherd w. HMobson, »n, D. '31, is doing synthetic rubber and polymerization re—
search for the Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company where he has been a research
chemist since 1941,

Phillp H. Ravenscrofi, ‘81, reports that he has been working in the productioen
evaluaticn part of the Chemical products pivision of the Standard oil Company
{indlana) a whiting for the past three years and ls enjpgying his work greatiy,
Ke alsc.tejls us thzt there are two other 1. y. graduatec there, £: P. _Easter~
fay, Aszistant persconsi Director, and james Vasic, Technical service Division,
De 2. Fink, *s1, and vobert ¥. Lewis, Ph, D. ‘43, have teen promoted to group
TEEESFS AT the wood RivVer Research Laboratories of the Shell 0il Company, wood
Biver, [lilnoils,

flanche £, Skidimore, &. M, '82, ls working as a research assistant at the gver—

¥ tTochemical Researzh Foundation, Inc., 284 W. 31st Street, wew York City.

HBorace ¥ililam Cock, "2, has been with the 3, F. Gosdrich Chemical Company
slnca he Teft 1.7 U, in December of 1ous, iHe I's now in tne Geon sales Depart-
ment of thal erganizaticn and spends half o his time in the Cleveland office
and the cther halft traveiing,

sohn iiayd Pendalil, pPh. D, *43, is Section Leader in charge of Technical jn-
formaiion of the Central Research Depariment of the Minnesota Mining and Manu-
facturing company at st. paul. JOohn is married and has a three-year-old son,
Jo Ley Tl .

Rolland E. Greendurg, '43, who left chegistry for medicine, set up practice in
Jasper, {ndianz Tast spring., He specializes in obstetrics and gynecology.

Clarence . Hull, Ph. D, ‘84, Is now an Assistant professor in the Chemistry
Department at the university of petroit.

Marshall wead, *u6, Is editor of the *poudle Bond, ® publication of the western
New YoFR“SeEticn of the american Chemical Society., He generously offers a

ersonaliy supervised tour of the Niagara Frontier to any A.l.u.C.members pass-
ng through flagara Falls, xew York i they will phone him.

ﬁgrg]d J._Blumenthall, *47, recelved the M. S. degree in.biochemistry from
Puraue 1949, “He 1s now a research fellow in the Bacteriology pepartment at
Purdue while completing work for the ph, D. degree,
larence A. Discher, ph. D. ‘%7, was promoted to Associate Professor of Chemijs-—
ry o ¢ Rulgers university college of Pharmacy on July 1, 1$50.
H. ¥. Johnston, Ph, D. '48, has a new potential_ﬁaint and varnish chemist in
the Tamiiy——~Hugh Richard, who arrived May 23, 1959,




MEWS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF CHEMISTRY

The greatest constructiona) activity around the Chemistry Building has
taken place on a spot just south of the east wing of the building. A short
time ago digging weas begun for the fostings of the new stomic Energy Labora~
tory. Soon the footings ware in, and at the.moment tre walls are rising. As
mentioned in our last news letter, the laboratory is 36 x 75 Teet and .is bein
constructed of concrete blocks.. All of the new and extensive program of atomic
Tesearch will be czrried out in this building under the genera supervision of
Df. Frank T. Gucker, Jr. Various other members of the Department of Chemistry
are 10 Be In charge of specific branches of this research, -

- For many monihs ancther extensive operation has besn under way in the
emistry Building., pipz fitters have set up a workshop in the northeast ep-
ance and have beern putting steam connections in many of the various labotra-
ries which were not so fitted when the buiiding was built, Simultanecusly,
¢ electricians of the yniversity have been at work putting in more electrical
outlets, heavier 1ines, and larger fuse and switch boxes where nesded in varlous
parts of the building, .

The Department of Chemistry has recelved numercus grants in recent months
and how holds grants totalling mcre than $100,000. perhaps the largest is that
of $24,520 received from the Atomic Energy Commission for the building and est-
ablishment of tne ladoratory already mentioned. This sum is the amcunt contri-
ouled for expensas during the first year. Dpr. L. L. Merritt will direct the
chemical research in connection with this projecit; and he will be assisted by
Dr. Hans Berneis, post doctoral fellow, and MF. Charles Weber. Bio-chemical re-
search will be Under the direction of Dr. FeVix Haurowilz and Dr. Harry G. Day.
Dr. Ralph Seifert will be in charge of stiudent training in the handling of
radiocactive materials, . .

0r. Frank 7. Gucker, Jr. has received a grant amounting to $21,045.50 from
the Alr Force Cambridge Reésearch Laboratories, Cambridge, Hassachusetts, for the
study of the "Mechanism of Coagulation of Aerosols. "™ This grant {s for two
years teginning November 1, 1950.

br, Gucker also holds a grant from the 0ffice of Naval Research for the
purpgse of carrying out work on the study of the *Thermodynamic properties of
Soiutions."

Dr. Harry G. Day has recently recejved grants for two studies. The first
from The Department of the Army extends for another year research on the ®Es—
sentiality of Fluorine." The second, sponsored by the 4. S, public Health ser-
vice, is for investigating "The Significance of lipoxidase in the Metabolism of
Carotine and vitamin A';I 4 ~ . . )

prs, W. H. Nebergall, Harry G. Day, and Joseph Muhler (D. D. S$.) are en-
gaged in research on the *significance of Tin an Fluoride gn Dental Caries.*®
The proctor and Gamble Company are the sponsors of this research.

Or. Felix Haurowitz holds a grant from the y. S. Public Health service for
work on the *Nature of the Combining Groups of antibody Molecules,% and also a
grant from the Federal security Agency amounting to $5,61%. : .

F« L. L. Merritt was awarded a grant by the office of Naval Research for
the study of the *Stability of chelate Compounds, ®

Or. E. E. Campaigne received the sum of $1,998 from the Federal Security
Adminisiration ToF cancer research.

on September 19th_pr, Gucker spoke at the Northeastern indiana Section of

Ch
tr
¢
th

the American Chemical Society. His topic was "Aeroscls.® The meeting was held
at the G. £, Squares Club in Fort wayne.

Dr. £, E. Campaigne was a visiting professor for the summer session of 1950
teachsn% organic chemistiry at his "alma mater, * Northwgstern university.

Between January 29 and February 1 Drs. L. L. Merritt and Robert Fischer
atiended the Fourth annual Symposium on Analytical Chemistry at Louisiana state
University, Baton Rouge. Dr. Herrit spoke on *¢rganic Reagents™* and Dr. Fischer
on "Electron Microscepy.* ” Both took part in a round-table discussion on the
"Teaching of Analytical chemistry,®

Drs. Ward Schasp, L. L. Merritt, and p. F. van velden attended the Sympos—
ium on the "EquiTibrium and Kate Bedavior of Complex™Tens™ held at the yniver—
sity of chicago under the sponsorship of the ofiice of paval Ressarch and the




Atomic Energy Commission from February 21st to 23rd. Dr. §€haag presented a
paper on the "Complexes of jron with Anions of DicarboXyTTic ACids."

Two books have recently been published by pepartment of Chemistry faculty
members. Dr. Haurcwitz® chemistry and Bioloay of proteins was brought out
during the Tate aufumn by the ACademic press, |nc., New YOork. Df. J. He Bill-
man and Mirs., Elizabeth Cleland (a former instructor of chemisiry at GOucher —
College and the wite of DOF. Ralph Clelland, fecan of the Graduate school) are
authors of Methods of Synthesis in grganic Chemistry.

.Chemisls of Southern [ndiana and the taculty and students of jndiana yni-
versity*s pepartment of Chemistry have had thzs opportunity to hear of work be-
ing done Dy and the viewpoints of a number of outstanding chemists in their
fields. As Colloquium Speakers during the fzil and winter months prs. Richard
T. Arnold, yniversity of Minnesota; Gus D. Dcrough, Washingion yniversity of
St. Louis; Frank w. puinam, uyniversity of chiczgo; and Jg?n L. Magee, yniver—
sity of jNoire Dame, have Deen with us. Drs. R2alsh H. Muller, Hew Yo6rk yniver—
sity; Frederick D, Rossini, Chairman of the Cremisiry Department, Carnegie {n-
stitute of Techrolegy; V., . xomarewsky, j1linois institute of Technology;
George L. Clark, university of j1linois; G. %. Beadle, California jnstitute of
Techaclogy, and Jouis F. Felser, Harvard uUnivarsity, spoke before members of
the soutpern indiana Section of the American (hemical Society.

An invitational Conference on grganic Sulfur Compounds is to be held here
at {ndiana yniversity between August 29 and Szpiember 1, 1951. About cne
hundred guests will be invited to hear twelive speakers and twelve moderators
discuss predlems in the fields of petroleum ccmpounds, physiologically active
sulfur compounds, and fundamental problems of organic sulfur chemistry. Six
of these speakers and moderators are from forsign countries; the other eight-
een are from various corporations and universities in the ynited States. ODr.
E. E. Campaigne is promoting this scheduled conference and is chairman of the
conference committee. :

~=mw On the Perscnal Side —==-

r- on 3eptember 2, 1951 Eugene Seidel, Assistant to Dr. Gucker, and Miss

HahcyBiddle, daughter of the late ward G. Bidole, *16, former Treasurer and
vice-president of Indiana yniversity, were married at Ann Arbor.

Dean H. T. Briscoe attended the inauguration of Dr. J. C. Warner as
president of the Carnegie |nstitute of Technclogy at pittsburgh on gctober 28,
1950.

Two members of the chemistry faculty have new daughters in their famil-
ies. The nenry Thacher's Aljda was born January 7, 1951. The E. E. Camp-
aignes now have Barbara Naomi born on February 27, 1951.

Dr. and Mrs,.Frank Mathers entertained the teaching faculty and wives en
masse at a dinner party on January 3. Dr. Mathers won the turkey at the -
Men*s Faculty Club Christmas party drawing., The Mathers added another turkey
and arranged a dinner in Room D of the ynion Building. After dinner the

tables were removed and Dr. and Mrs, LeRoy Klemm led some group singing.

Catharin Alice (Tatty) Briscoe, daughter of pr. and Mrs. H. T. Briscoe,
was married to Stepen G. Ayers on.March 17, 1951, :



